
If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format or language, please call David Penrose, Democratic 
Services Officer, Tel: 01432 383690 on 01432 383690 or e-mail 
dpenrose@herefordshire.gov.uk in advance of the meeting. 

 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

Community Services Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

Date: Monday 29 June 2009 

Time: 10.00 am 

Place: The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

David Penrose, Democratic Services Officer, Tel: 01432 
383690 

Tel: 01432 383690 

Email: dpenrose@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 



 

GUIDANCE ON DECLARING PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 

The Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct requires Councillors to declare against an Agenda item(s) 
the nature of an interest and whether the interest is personal or prejudicial.  Councillors have to 
decide first whether or not they have a personal interest in the matter under discussion.  They will 
then have to decide whether that personal interest is also prejudicial. 

  
A personal interest is an interest that affects the Councillor more than most other people in the area.  
People in the area include those who live, work or have property in the area of the Council.  
Councillors will also have a personal interest if their partner, relative or a close friend, or an 
organisation that they or the member works for, is affected more than other people in the area.  If they 
do have a personal interest, they must declare it but can stay and take part and vote in the meeting.   

 

Whether an interest is prejudicial is a matter of judgement for each Councillor.  What Councillors have 
to do is ask themselves whether a member of the public – if he or she knew all the facts – would think 
that the Councillor’s interest was so important that their decision would be affected by it.  If a 
Councillor has a prejudicial interest then they must declare what that interest is.  A Councillor who 
has declared a prejudicial interest at a meeting may nevertheless be able to address that meeting, 
but only in circumstances where an ordinary member of the public would be also allowed to speak.  In 
such circumstances, the Councillor concerned will have the same opportunity to address the meeting 
and on the same terms.  However, a Councillor exercising their ability to speak in these 
circumstances must leave the meeting immediately after they have spoken. 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Community 
Services Scrutiny Committee 
  

Membership  
  

Chairman Councillor TM James 
Vice-Chairman Councillor KG Grumbley 

  

Councillor DJ Benjamin  
Councillor GFM Dawe  
Councillor BA Durkin  
Councillor DW Greenow  
Councillor KS Guthrie  
Councillor MAF Hubbard  
Councillor B Hunt  
Councillor RH Smith  
Councillor RV Stockton  
  

 
Mrs Gillian Churchill HALC 
Mrs. J. Evans National Farmers Union 
Mr P Hands Visit Herefordshire 
Mr Gary Woodman Hereford and Worcester Chamber of 

Commerce 
 
 

    Non Voting 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  29 JUNE 2009 

 

 

AGENDA 
 Pages 
  
   
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     
   
 To receive apologies for absence.  
   
2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES     
   
 To receive any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting in place 

of a Member of the Committee. 
 

   
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
   
 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 

the Agenda. 
 
GUIDANCE ON DECLARING PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL 
INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 
The Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct requires Councillors to declare 
against an Agenda item(s) the nature of an interest and whether the interest 
is personal or prejudicial.  Councillors have to decide first whether or not 
they have a personal interest in the matter under discussion.  They will then 
have to decide whether that personal interest is also prejudicial. 
  
A personal interest is an interest that affects the Councillor more than most 
other people in the area.  People in the area include those who live, work or 
have property in the area of the Council.  Councillors will also have a 
personal interest if their partner, relative or a close friend, or an organisation 
that they or the member works for, is affected more than other people in the 
area.  If they do have a personal interest, they must declare it but can stay 
and take part and vote in the meeting.   
 
Whether an interest is prejudicial is a matter of judgement for each 
Councillor.  What Councillors have to do is ask themselves whether a 
member of the public – if he or she knew all the facts – would think that the 
Councillor’s interest was so important that their decision would be affected 
by it.  If a Councillor has a prejudicial interest then they must declare what 
that interest is and leave the meeting room. 

 

   
4. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR 

FUTURE SCRUTINY   
  

   
 To consider suggestions from members of the public on issues the 

Committee could scrutinise in the future. 
 

   
5. MINUTES   1 - 10  
   
 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meetings held on 11 March and 6 

April 2009. 
 

   
6. ANNUAL REPORT ON ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY SERVICES (TO 

FOLLOW)   
  

   
 To receive a presentation by the Cabinet Member (Economic Development 

and Community Services) informing the Committee of policy issues affecting 
this programme area and the main priorities. 

 

   



 

 

7. REVIEW OF THE BACKLOG OF DEFINITIVE MAP MODIFICATION 
ORDERS   

11 - 14  

   
 To receive a report on the backlog of Definitive Map Modification orders.  
   
8. EXECUTIVE'S RESPONSE TO THE SCRUTINY REVIEW OF COMMUNITY 

ENGAGEMENT WITH THE HEREFORDSHIRE COMMUNITY AND SAFETY 
DRUGS PARTNERSHIP   

15 - 20  

   
 To consider the Executive's Response to the Scrutiny Review of Community 

Engagement with the Herefordshire Community and Safety Drugs 
Partnership. 

 

   
9. HEREFORD UNITED FOOTBALL GROUND LEASES   21 - 24  
   
 To receive a report on the options for the Hereford United Football Ground.  
   
10. COMMUNITY/CULTURAL SERVICES REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING   25 - 30  
   
 To advise the Committee of the final revenue outturn position for 2008/09 for 

the Economic and Community Services Division within the Regeneration 
Directorate and Cultural Services functions within the Environment and 
Culture Directorate. 

 

   
11. ENVIRONMENT & CULTURE AND REGENERATION DIRECTORATES: 

PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR 1 APRIL 2008 - 31 MARCH 2009   
31 - 40  

   
 To report on the performance indicator position and other performance 

management information for the Economic and Community Services 
Division within the Regeneration Directorate and Cultural Services functions 
within the Environment and Culture Directorate. 

 

   
12. COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME   41 - 44  
   
 To consider the Committee’s work programme.  
   



PUBLIC INFORMATION 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL'S SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 

The Council has established Scrutiny Committees for Adult Social Care 
and Strategic Housing, Childrens’ Services, Community Services, 
Environment, and Health.  A Strategic Monitoring Committee scrutinises 
corporate matters and co-ordinates the work of these Committees. 

The purpose of the Committees is to ensure the accountability and 
transparency of the Council's decision making process. 

The principal roles of Scrutiny Committees are to 
 

•  Help in developing Council policy 
 

• Probe, investigate, test the options and ask the difficult questions 
before and after decisions are taken 

 

• Look in more detail at areas of concern which may have been raised 
by the Cabinet itself, by other Councillors or by members of the public 

 

• "call in" decisions  - this is a statutory power which gives Scrutiny 
Committees the right to place a decision on hold pending further 
scrutiny. 

 

• Review performance of the Council 
 

• Conduct Best Value reviews  
 

• Undertake external scrutiny work engaging partners and the public  
 
Formal meetings of the Committees are held in public and information 
on your rights to attend meetings and access to information are set out 
overleaf 
 



PUBLIC INFORMATION 

Public Involvement at Scrutiny Committee Meetings 

You can contact Councillors and Officers at any time about Scrutiny 
Committee matters and issues which you would like the Scrutiny 
Committees to investigate.  

There are also two other ways in which you can directly contribute at 
Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committee meetings. 

1. Identifying Areas for Scrutiny 

At the meeting the Chairman will ask the members of the public present if 
they have any issues which they would like the Scrutiny Committee to 
investigate, however, there will be no discussion of the issue at the time 
when the matter is raised.  Councillors will research the issue and consider 
whether it should form part of the Committee’s work programme when 
compared with other competing priorities. 

Please note that the Committees can only scrutinise items which fall within 
their specific remit (see below).  If a matter is raised which falls within the 
remit of another Scrutiny Committee then it will be noted and passed on to 
the relevant Chairman for their consideration.   

2. Questions from Members of the Public for Consideration at 
Scrutiny Committee Meetings and Participation at Meetings 

You can submit a question for consideration at a Scrutiny Committee 
meeting so long as the question you are asking is directly related to an item 
listed on the agenda.  If you have a question you would like to ask then 
please submit it no later than two working days before the meeting to 
the Committee Officer.  This will help to ensure that an answer can be 
provided at the meeting.  Contact details for the Committee Officer can be 
found on the front page of this agenda.   

Generally, members of the public will also be able to contribute to the 
discussion at the meeting.  This will be at the Chairman’s discretion.   

(Please note that the Scrutiny Committees are not able to discuss 
questions relating to personal or confidential issues.) 



 
Remits of Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committees 
 
Adult Social Care and Strategic Housing 
 
Statutory functions for adult social services including: 
Learning Disabilities 
Strategic Housing 
Supporting People 
Public Health 
 
Children’s Services 
 
Provision of services relating to the well-being of children including 
education, health and social care. 
 
Community Services Scrutiny Committee 
 
Libraries 
Cultural Services including heritage and tourism 
Leisure Services 
Parks and Countryside 
Community Safety 
Economic Development 
Youth Services 
 
Health 
 
Planning, provision and operation of health services affecting the area 
Health Improvement 
Services provided by the NHS 
 
Environment 
 
Environmental Issues 
Highways and Transportation 
 
Strategic Monitoring Committee 
Corporate Strategy and Finance 
Resources  
Corporate and Customer Services 
Human Resources 

 

 



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at 
Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
 

• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the 
business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the 
meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to 
six years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up 
to four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a 
report is given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on 
which the officer has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available 
to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all 
Councillors with details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and 
Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, 
subject to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per 
agenda plus a nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of 
the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy 
documents. 

 

 

 



 

Please Note: 

Agenda and individual reports can be made available in large 
print.  Please contact the officer named on the front cover of this 
agenda in advance of the meeting who will be pleased to deal 
with your request. 

The Council Chamber where the meeting will be held is accessible for 
visitors in wheelchairs, for whom toilets are also available. 

A public telephone is available in the reception area. 
 
Public Transport Links 
 
 
• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs 

approximately every half hour from the ‘Hopper’ bus station at the Tesco store in 
Bewell Street (next to the roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / 
Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Old Eign Hill near to its junction 
with Hafod Road.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 
 
 
 
If you have any questions about this agenda, how the Council works or would like more 
information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information described above, 
you may do so either by telephoning the officer named on the front cover of this agenda 
or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 p.m. Monday - Thursday 
and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford. 

 

 

 

 

 
Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer waste. De-

inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA). Awarded the 

Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel environmental label. 

 



 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point J which is located at 
the southern entrance to the car park.  A check will be undertaken 
to ensure that those recorded as present have vacated the 
building following which further instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of 
the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning 
to collect coats or other personal belongings. 
 



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 

MINUTES of the meeting of Community Services Scrutiny 
Committee held at The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 
Hafod Road, Hereford on Wednesday 11 March 2009 at 9.30 
am 
  

Present: Councillor TM James (Chairman) 
Councillor PM Morgan (Vice Chairman) 

   
 Councillors: GFM Dawe, KS Guthrie, MAF Hubbard, MD Lloyd-Hayes, 

G Lucas, JE Pemberton, RH Smith and PJ Watts 
 

  
In attendance: Councillors   
  
  
90. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
  
 Apologies were received from Councillor DJ Benjamin, B Durkin, DW Greenow and 

PM Morgan. 
  
91. NAMED SUBSTITUTES   
  
 Councillor G Lucas substituted for Councillor DW Greenow, Councillor MD Lloyd-

Hayes substituted for Councillor DJ Benjamin, Councillor JE Pemberton substituted 
for Councillor B Durkin and Councillor PJ Watts substituted for Councillor PM 
Morgan. 

  
92. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
  
 Name Item Interest 

Councillor AJM 
Blackshaw 

11: Call-in of the 
Open Retail Market 

Personal – Hereford City Partnership 

Councillor TM James  11: as above Personal – Hereford City Partnership 

Councillor MAF Hubbard 11: as above Personal – Hereford City Partnership 

Councillor  11: as above Personal – Hereford City Partnership  
  
93. MINUTES   
  
 RESOLVED: That the minutes for the meeting held on 12 December 2008, be 

approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
  
94. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR FUTURE 

SCRUTINY   
  
 There were no suggestions for scrutiny. 
  
95. CALL IN OF THE CABINET DECISION ON THE RELOCATION OF THE 

HEREFORD OPEN RETAIL MARKET   
  
 The Chairman opened the debate on the Open Retail Market by asking the Cabinet 

Member (Economic Development and Community Services) to put forward his case. 
 
The Cabinet Member reported that the subject of the Open Retail Market had been 

AGENDA ITEM 5

1



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WEDNESDAY 11 MARCH 2009 

 

 

discussed at length at Cabinet on the 19th February 2009 before a decision had 
been made.  Prior to this meeting, there had also been a site visit to Commercial 
Street with Officers and members of the Hereford City Partnership to view the 
intended venue for the re-located Open Retail Market.   
 
As a result of these discussions, four main alterations had been made to the original 
proposal: 
 

• That the move of the market to High Town would be only be undertaken as 
part of a one year trial which would be followed by a detailed study of the 
effectiveness of the new arrangements. 

 

• That a retail impact study would be undertaken as part of the trail exercise. 
 

• There would be a thorough review of the strategy surrounding the policy of 
selecting new stallholders and the quality of the retail offered as well as its 
geographical origin.  The first draft of this strategy had been put together and 
would be discussed with the Hereford City Partnership.  The Partnership 
would also be involved in the selection of stallholders. 

 

• The Council would consider using Experion, the footfall performance 
measuring solutions company, to analyse the impact of the Open Retail 
Market and any other activity in High Town on the Butter Market in High 
Town. 

 
The Chairman thanked the Cabinet Member for his contribution, and invited the 
Acting Head of Environmental Health and Trading Standards to comment on any 
additional areas that had not been covered by the Cabinet Member. 
 
The Acting Head of Environmental Health and Trading Standards reported that the 
issues that had been raised in the Call-in document had been considered in detail: 
 

• The concern that shop fronts would be obscured had been addressed by the 
decision to position stalls a further 1 metre out, so that they would now be 
3.3m from shop fronts. 

 

• The draft Allocations Policy had been developed over the last week, and 
signed off by the Cabinet Member, Economic Development and Community 
Services.  

 

• The proposal was timely, given the current economic climate, as it would help 
to energise the City centre, and encourage businesses to invest in the City. 

 

• In reply to a question from a Member, he said that twenty five units were 
proposed, not all of which would be held by individual stall holders. 

 
The Chairman thanked the Acting Head of Environmental Health and Trading 
Standards for his contribution, and invited the Central Ward Member to speak on 
behalf of the Members who had called the Decision in. 
 
The Central Ward Member said that he was a great supporter of street markets, and 
did believe that they brought vibrancy to city centres.  He was concerned, however, 
that the consultation process that had been undertaken to support the report to 
Cabinet regarding the relocation of the Open Retail Market was flawed.  The 
interpretation of the data from the exercise left much to be desired, and he believed 
that it was inappropriate that the 107 people who did not respond should be taken as 
being in favour of the retail market.   

2



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WEDNESDAY 11 MARCH 2009 

 

 

 
He believed that mistakes had also been made in the collection of data.  Two letters 
had been sent by the Buttermarket Independent Traders Association which had 
stated that the majority of traders were opposed to the relocated market.  The report 
to Cabinet indicated that no response had been received from the Buttermarket 
traders.  The Herefordshire Farmers Market Group had apparently been considered 
to be in favour of the move, despite having expressed their opposition. 
 
He questioned why the opinion of the Parks and Countryside Service had been 
solicited, as the area of the City in question did not fall under their remit.  He went on 
to say that the Museum’s Service did have concerns regarding the location of stalls 
near the Old House, as they had invested in signage that would be obscured. 
 
The Central Ward Member went on to say that had concerns as to whether the 
proposals truly reflected the relocation of the present Open Retail Market, or the 
creation of a new one and it was important that there should be a Quality Stalls 
policy as well as a Stalls Allocation Policy. It was clear following his visit to the 
existing market that not all the traders would be relocated in the proposed new site. 
Two of the most popular stalls, the butcher and the plant stall, required too much 
space to be able to trade in Commercial Street.  Of the ten stall holders who traded 
regularly, only seven were planning to move to the new site.  A national advertising 
campaign had invited submissions of interest from potential stallholders, and he did 
not believe that this was an appropriate way to support either the market or the 
County.   
 
He went on to say that that he had attended the public consultation meeting and had 
listened to the concerns expressed but had been unable to reach a conclusion on 
the proposals based on the discussions.  He felt that the case put forward by the 
Council was not realistic, and that presenting people with pictures of existing markets 
in different towns was not an appropriate way to further the debate. 
 
The Central Ward Member added that the traders in the Buttermarket had to pay 
rent, business rates and electricity charges.  It was not clear what traders who might 
be travelling from as far away as Birmingham would be charged, but they did not 
appear to be paying either business rates or electricity charges.  This position 
reflected the view that the new market would offer unfair competition to the 
Buttermarket traders. 
 
In reply to a question from a Member, the Cabinet Member (Economic Development 
and Community Services) said that there would be a meeting with the owners of 
Maylords Orchards, DRE Property Services Ltd, in which the suggestion of locating 
some of the market stalls in Trinity Square would be discussed. 
 
In reply to the concerns that had been raised by Members, the Cabinet Member said 
that he did not consider competition to necessarily be a matter for concern.   He 
pointed out that there were currently fifty empty retail units in the City, and that a 
market, which would only serve to increase the footfall and vibrancy within the City 
centre, would help to revitalise the interest in these units.  He did not believe that it 
would damage the existing retail offer. 
 
In reply to the concerns raised by the Chairman of the Hereford Buttermarket 
Independent Traders Association in his letter submitted to the Committee, the 
Cabinet Member reiterated that the relocation of the Open Retail Market would only 
be undertaken on the basis of a one year trial.  Monitoring of the trial period should 
address the concerns that had been raised.  He believed that the two markets could 
be complimentary, and would not necessarily conflict with each other.  The daily 
charge for electricity made by the Council to stallholders was available on the 

3



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WEDNESDAY 11 MARCH 2009 

 

 

Council Website. 
 
In reply to concerns expressed in an email from Herefordshire Farmers’ Market 
Group that the Open Retail Market would not sit well with the Farmers Market, the 
Cabinet Member pointed out that the latter was only held monthly.  He did believe 
that the matter highlighted broader issues relating to the sale of food and drink that 
should be looked into. 
 
Mr New of New Markets Solutions was invited to address the meeting.  Mr New said 
that he believed that it was a misrepresentation to assume that the types of trading 
from indoor and outdoor markets were not compatible, and that the retail offer would 
be different from that on offer in the Buttermarket or Maylords.  He went on to point 
out that the cost of business rates was factored into the charge that was made for 
the rental of the stall.  The Council would charge £30 a day for a 10’ x 10’ stall.  The 
Buttermarket traders were charged £47 per square foot per annum, which worked 
out as £8 a day factored over six days a week trading through the year.  The Open 
Retail Market traders would be charged almost twice this, at £15.60 per square foot 
per day. 
 
A Member stated that he supported the call-in as it served to demonstrate the 
importance of the role of elected Members in the formulation of policy, but said that 
he felt that the debate had become fragmented.  He suggested that the role of the 
Buttermarket should be put to one side and focus placed on the existing Open Retail 
Market.  The present market was both rundown and inconveniently placed and was 
unlikely to thrive.  He felt that, bearing in mind the needs of the Edgar Street 
Development, the market should move into the City centre.  
 
In the ensuing discussion, Members raised the following points: 

 

• That the retail impact assessment should not take place during the trial 
period but should have been undertaken before the decision to move the 
market was made. 

 

• That the question of impedance of both pedestrians and vehicles should be 
more carefully considered, as the placing of stalls would create pinch points. 

 

• That consideration should be made to placing the market elsewhere in the 
centre in order to spread the footfall throughout the City. 

 

• It was important that the existing shops in High town should not be affected.  
Consideration should be given to reducing the number of stalls in order to 
ensure that shop fronts were not obscured. 

 

• That no stalls should be placed around the Old House, as they would detract 
from the visitor experience.  

 

• That care should be exercised when placing stalls near Starbucks, as the 
shop was a draw for tourists and residents alike.  Stalls beside the Old House 
would impact on the disabled access to the shop. 

 
In reply, the Acting Head of Environmental Health and Trading Standards said that it 
was important to offer stallholders a prime location, otherwise it would be difficult to 
attract traders.  He added that whilst it was intended that there should be 25 stalls, it 
was likely that there would only be twelve or thirteen traders. It was now intended 
that the Open Retail Market stalls in High Town would be a further metre from the 
shop fronts.  This would mean that there would be a gap of 3.3m between shop 

4



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WEDNESDAY 11 MARCH 2009 

 

 

fronts and stalls. 
 
The current market was not successful, and it should be borne in mind that there had 
been twenty two new traders on site over the last year, of which none had lasted 
more than eight weeks. 
 
The City Centre Manager said that she was concerned that the market would be 
trading from 9am to 4 pm.  Commercial Street was open for traffic until 10.30 am, 
and a number of shops had to receive deliveries through their front doors.  As a 
consequence, Commercial Street was full of delivery vans until well after that time. 
 
A Member pointed out that given the size of capital works that were planned in the 
City, with works on the Cathedral and the Edgar Street Project, care should be given 
to ensuring that the Old House, a prime tourist site, was not compromised by the 
market proposal.  He asked whether consideration had been given to using elements 
of  Broad Street for the market as an alternative site. 
 
Mr New replied that a SWOT analysis of Broad Street had been undertaken, and as 
it was not fundamentally a retail area it was considered inappropriate as an 
alternative site for the market.  The Manager, Markets & Fairs and Street Trading 
added that if the market was to be sited in Broad Street, the road would have to be 
closed, causing considerable congestion.  Parking places in the City would also be 
lost, as the spaces in Broad Street would not be accessible.  The market would 
cease to be seen as a positive draw for people, but a hindrance to the business of 
the City. 
 
In reply to concerns expressed over the robustness of the consultation process, the 
Principal Research Officer said that the Council’s corporate guidelines were followed 
in detail for the consultation process.  Eight weeks had been provided for replies, 
which was an adequate time period.  There was a clear and organised audit trail for 
the process, and concerns and responses were documented.  None of the traders 
had replied within the consultation period, which made it difficult for the decision 
makers to respond to their concerns.  She believed that the interpretation of the 
results was reasonable and the process robust, although people who did not 
respond were usually treated as being ‘no data’, rather than in favour.  The surveys 
had been hand delivered by members of the Markets & Fairs Team. 
 
Mr L Tawn, the Chairman of the Hereford Buttermarket Independent Traders 
Association addressed the Committee.  He said that he was concerned about the 
traffic congestion problems that would be encountered from 9am to 10.30am and did 
not feel that the issue had been fully addressed.  There would be, by the nature of 
the positioning of the Open Retail Market, unfair competition.  This issue of unfair 
competition had not been addressed in the debate, and that was the fact that the 
best selling space for any retailer was in front of the customer.  Traders in the 
Buttermarket had to rely on customers coming through the front door.  Traders in the 
Open Retail Market would have a four sided shop window with excellent location and 
footfall.   
 
In the ensuing discussion, the following points were made: 
 

• That the council owed a duty of care to the traders in the Buttermarket during 
the period of redevelopment. 

 

• That Buttermarket stallholders paid business rates, whilst those who took up 
stall in the Open Retail Market would not.  

 
The Manager, Markets & Fairs and Street Trading replied to these concerns and said 

5



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WEDNESDAY 11 MARCH 2009 

 

 

that street traders were in a different legal position from those in the Buttermarket, 
but that the rent that they would be charged would provide parity with the traders in 
the Buttermarket. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
  That; 
 

a) The Committee endorses the Cabinet decision to relocate the Open 
Retail Market into Commercial Street, and notes and welcomes the 
intention to develop a quality stalls policy and the stall allocation 
policy, in close consultation with the Hereford City Partnership, before 
the market opens in its new location. 

 
b) The Committee invites the Cabinet Member to review the precise 

location of stalls in order to facilitate the free flow of customers, 
especially around the Old House, and to minimise any adverse impact 
on existing business. 

 
 and; 
 

c) The Committee requests that an updated report should be submitted 
within two months of the market re-opening, and how the potential 
problems regarding delivery vehicles have been resolved. 

  
The meeting ended at 11.50 am CHAIRMAN 
 

6



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 

MINUTES of the meeting of Community Services Scrutiny 
Committee held at The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod 
Road, Hereford on Monday 6 April 2009 at 10.00 am 
  

Present: Councillor TM James (Chairman) 
Councillor  PM Morgan (Vice Chairman) 

   
 Councillors: GFM Dawe, BA Durkin, DW Greenow, KS Guthrie, MAF Hubbard, 

B Hunt and RH Smith 
 

  
In attendance: Councillors PJ Edwards and WLS Bowen 
  
96. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 
Apologies were received from Councillor R V Stockton 
 

97. NAMED SUBSTITUTES   
 
There were no named substitutes. 
 

98. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

Name Item Interest 

Cllr B Hunt 7 - Environment & Culture and 
Regeneration Directorates: 
Performance for the Nine-Month 
Period to Dec 2008 

Personal – as Council 
appointed Board Member, 
West Mercia Police 
Authority. 

Cllr RH Smith 7 - Environment & Culture and 
Regeneration Directorates: 
Performance for the Nine-Month 
Period to Dec 2008 

Personal – as Council 
appointed Board Member, 
West Mercia Police 
Authority. 

 
99. MINUTES   

 
RESOLVED: That consideration of the minutes for the meeting held on 11 March 2009 

be deferred to the next meeting of the Committee. 
 

100. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR FUTURE 
SCRUTINY   
 
Mr P McKay suggested that the Committee should scrutinise the amount of time taken to 
undertake Definitive Map modification orders, and why none had been determined in the 
previous five years.  His concerns extended to the issue of Public Rights of Way and Green 
Lanes.  
 
Resolved: 
 
That; 
 

a) as the issues also fell within the Terms of Reference of the Environment 
Scrutiny Committee, discussions would be held with the Chairman of 
Environment Scrutiny in order to consider the matter as a joint issue for 
both Committees; 

7



 

 and; 
 

b) a report outlining the backlog of Definitive Map modification orders and 
how the issue was to be resourced and resolved, would be submitted to 
the next meeting of the Committee.  Consideration would then be given as 
to whether a Scrutiny Review of the matter was appropriate. 

 
101. REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2008/09   

 

The Committee received the report on the Community Services budgets for the period to 
28 February 2009. 
 

The Community Services Accountant drew the Committee’s attention to Appendix 1 of the 
report, which set out the detailed Budget Monitoring Report.  She reported that the total 
Community Services budget for 2008/09 had increased to £10,057,926 from the amount 
reported to previous meeting, which was £9,953,992. The increase of £103,934 was as a 
result of the receipt of budget from the Area Based Grant of £181,934 within Community 
Safety and the reduction of budget of £78k to Leisure Services budgets.  

She went on to say that the Economic Development budget was expected to underspend 
by £65k, this being due to vacancy savings of £20k and the return of unspent grant from 
the Edgar Street Grid project of £45k. Community Regeneration was forecasted to 
underspend by £16k as a result of savings on grant expenditure. The Management cost 
centre was also expected to underspend by £32k due to a reduction in activity, in order to 
manage budget pressures within the regeneration directorate.  

Resolved: That the report be noted.  

 
102. ENVIRONMENT & CULTURE AND REGENERATION DIRECTORATES: 

PERFORMANCE FOR THE NINE-MONTH PERIOD TO DECEMBER 2008   
 

The Committee considered the report on the performance indicator position and other 
performance management information for the Economic and Community Services Division 
within the Regeneration Directorate and Cultural Services functions within the Environment 
and Culture Directorate.  
 

The Improvement Manager reported that the overall position indicated a further 
improvement in the number of indicators judged to be Green (On course to achieve 
targets).  The provision of data and actions contributing to improved performance had 
enabled a rating as Green or Amber (Some progress, but data not available to determine 
whether the target would be achieved) for a significant number of previously Red (Not on 
target/no activity reported) rated indicators.  He went on to highlight two indicators that had 
slipped from Amber to Red.  These were NI 166 (average earnings of employees in the 
area) and BVPI 126 (domestic burglaries).  Earnings had increased in Herefordshire, but 
the gap between those in the County and the West Midlands as whole had also increased.  
Robberies (BVPI 127b) was also likely to be worse than the previous year, but it was not 
considered a priority by the Herefordshire Community Safety & Drugs Partnership. 
 

In reply to concerns raised over the manner in which indicators had been prioritised, it was 
noted that BVPI 127b was a target set by the West Mercia Constabulary, and the data was 
collected by the Herefordshire Community and Safety Drugs Partnership.  The Police were 
the lead originator of this particular indicator concerned, and at present, performance 
against this indicator fell within their acceptable norms.  There was no question that the 
West Mercia Police Authority did not take these issues seriously, but the figures were low 
in Herefordshire in comparison with the rest of the region. 
 

In the ensuing discussion, the following matters were raised: 
 

• That NI 152 was shown as green was a technical anomaly on the report.  Data was 
now available which would allow a baseline to be set. 

 

8



 

• That the next report to the Committee would have the vast majority of baselines 
set, apart from those that relied upon external data from central government. 

 

• That the baseline for NI 11 was taken from the national Active People Survey 
(April-October 2008).  Engagement with the Arts was not asked as a specific 
question, but a reply was left up to the respondent.  

 
RESOLVED:  

That: (a) the report on performance be noted, 

  and; 

 (b) areas of concern and exception continue to be monitored. 
 

103. PROGRESS REPORT ON ACTION PLAN FOR THE EDGAR STREET GRID (ESG) 
SCHEME   
 
The Committee received a progress report on the Action Plan for the Edgar Street Grid 
(ESG) Scheme. 
 

The Head of Economic and Community Services reported on progress against the actions 
agreed in response to the Committee’s Review of the Edgar Street Grid Project.  She 
stated that the following actions were being taken: 
 

• Recommendation 1, the improvements to Widemarsh Street would potentially be 
underway from January 2010. 

 

• Recommendation 2, a consultation workshop on the Transport Hub had been 
undertaken by ESG Ltd on the 29th January. 

 

• On Recommendations 3 and 4 there was, as yet, no progress.  In the latter case, 
this was because the capital works in Cathedral Close had not yet started. 

 

• Recommendation 5 – linkage to the Courtyard: design work on the new 
development was continuing and this issue would be addressed through this 
process. 

 
In reply to concerns that a design for the City was being developed with no consultation 
with the local populace, the Cabinet Member (Economic Development and Community 
Services) said that the Design Brief had been developed by Ben Hamilton Bailey and 
would inform the overall design.  This was an important part of the process, as there was 
no design brief for the City as a whole.  Businesses in Widemarsh Street would be 
consulted over the designs.  Whilst the timetable for the project had been altered, it would 
happen.  It was understandable that there would be concerns about such changes even in 
normal market conditions, but it should be noted that it was unlikely that the work would be 
undertaken until after the recession was over.   He added that this was an important period 
for the City, and that independent retailers had a great opportunity to help generate 
additional footfall during the period of change for the City. 
 

RESOLVED: That the progress to achieve the Action Plan be noted.   
 
 

104. WORK PROGRAMME   
 

The Committee noted the Work Programme. 
 

RESOLVED:  That the work programme be approved and reported to the  
 Strategic Monitoring Committee. 
 

The meeting ended at 11.25 am CHAIRMAN 

9



10



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 29 JUNE 2009 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  

Rob Hemblade, Interim Parks, Countryside and Leisure Development Manager on 01432 261981 

 

REVIEW OF THE BACKLOG OF DEFINITIVE MAP 
MODIFICATION ORDERS 

Report By: Director of Environment and Culture 

 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1. To consider the current backlog of Definitive Map Modification Orders 

Financial Implications 

2. An investment of £200,000 per year over 3 years would be needed just to clear the 
current backlog  up to determination stage.  Beyond determination stage, a further 
£300,000 per year would be required to employ extra legal support and open up the 
routes on the ground.  

Background 

3. At the Community Services Scrutiny Committee in December 2008, it was resolved that 
the Parks and Countryside Service undertake an urgent review of the backlog of 
Definitive Map Modification Orders, with a view to eradicating them within 3 years and 
to provide a progress report to the Committee. 

Current Situation 

4. The Council currently has a backlog of 82 modification order applications awaiting 
determination.  The number of new applications being made per year is quite variable, 
but over the past 8 years it averages 7.6 applications per year. At present there are 13 
high-priority applications, 33 medium-priority applications, and 36 low-priority 
applications awaiting determination. 

5. Currently, two full-time officers are employed to deal with these applications.  They are 
able to complete approximately 4 determinations per officer per year (8 in total).  Many 
of these will give rise to formal objections which will lead to Public Inquiries – placing 
additional pressure on staff resources.  This means that with current levels of 
resources, it is likely to take over 10 years to clear the current backlog, and with new 
applications being received at a rate of 7 – 8 per year, it is probable that there will 
continue to be a significant number of applications awaiting determination. 

Recent Performance 

6. Over the last 4 years the two officers dealing with modifications have dealt with 35 
applications which is an average of 8.75 per year. The work in determining an order is 
similar whether or not the decision is to make an order. There is often an appeal when 
a decision is made not to support an order, which will involve the Secretary of State.  
The table below indicates that there is now a need to start turning determinations into 

AGENDA ITEM 7

11



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 29 JUNE 2009 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  

Rob Hemblade, Interim Parks, Countryside and Leisure Development Manager on 01432 261981 

 

orders. As stated, most of these orders will result in objections and will need to be 
determined by the planning inspectorate, usually through a public Inquiry. 

 

 Report 
completed – 
awaiting 
determination 

Determined 
– No Order 

Determined – 
awaiting order 

Order Made 

2005 - 06 0 2 2 2 

2006 - 07 0 8 0 0 

2007 - 08 0 3 4 0 

2008 - 09 1 2 11 0 

 

Benchmarking 

7. The table below sets out a benchmarking exercise carried out in 2007 with a number of 
other local authorities. All authorities, other than Shropshire, have large backlogs of 
undetermined DMMO applications. Numbers of determinations made per year are 
broadly similar but Herefordshire Council is down on the number of orders made per 
year. 

 Staff Determinations 
made 

Orders made Backlog of 
applications 

Herefordshire 2 8 0 100 

Worcestershire 2 3 3 118 

Shropshire 3 6 8 56 

Warwickshire 3 9 5 162 

Staffordshire N/K 7 N/K 230 

 

Authorisation Procedure 

8. Upon receipt of an application, officers will prioritise and place it at the appropriate point 
in the queue. When it is time to deal with the application, the officer will carry out the 
necessary research and submit a decision report to the Assistant Director with 
responsibility for Public Rights of Way for determination. If the decision is to make an 
order, it is advertised and sent out for public consultation. If no objections are received, 
the order is confirmed and the route added to the Definitive map and opened up on the 
ground which can in it self be very costly. If an objection is received, and the majority of 
orders do result in an objection, the order is submitted to Secretary of State for 
determination which quite often ends up at a public inquiry.  

Although it would be possible to cut down on the time spent on a determination report, 
this would expose the council to criticism, greater risk and result in having to commit 
more officer time later on the in the process. Beyond determination stage, it is limited 
as to how much impact the rights of way service has on the speed an order is 
processed. If the order has objections, the whole matter is referred to the Secretary of 

12



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 29 JUNE 2009 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  

Rob Hemblade, Interim Parks, Countryside and Leisure Development Manager on 01432 261981 

 

State for determination. It can take over a year before the Secretary of State either 
decides on the report or decides whether or not to hold a Public Inquiry. 

Service Delivery Review 

9. Herefordshire Council are currently undergoing review of a number of Services 
including Public Rights of Way with our service delivery partners, Amey. Amey currently 
have two contracts with Herefordshire Council to deliver a number of Services including 
Rights of Way and the contracts allow for other elements of those Services to be 
included within the scope. Herefordshire Council have decided that it is in the Council’s 
best interest in terms of saving money and improving Services to commission out all 
aspects of Public Rights of Way leaving only those areas that cannot be delegated, 
plus contract monitoring and strategic development. In effect Amey will be responsible 
for all areas of the Service including Definitive Modification Orders. When Amey take 
over the service it may be appropriate to explore a number of options including 
revisiting the current policy. We will be discussing this with both our Partners and 
various Stakeholders. 

National Context 

10. Natural England has set up a task group to look at the Definitive map Modification 
Order procedure following the collapse of the Discovering Lost Ways Project. This may 
result in some fundamental changes to the way modification orders are processed or 
prioritised. 

Conclusion 

11. The Council is very constrained in it’s flexibility to deal with the current backlog due to 
legislation and statutory process. Whilst the clearance of the backlog of Definitive Map 
Modification Orders up to determination stage within 3 years is possible, it would take 
considerable investment and would in all likelihood result in the backlog being shifted 
along rather than cleared. The service is currently concentrating on high priority 
applications which are those that provide the most benefit to the community. Beyond 
order making stage, considerable parts of the process are out of the Council’s control 
so it would not be possible to completely clear the backlog within 3 years as it is 
unlikely that either the council’s Legal services or the Secretary of State would be able 
to deal with a dramatic increase in orders and the subsequent objections. The service 
should however ensure that some orders are made this year. The service delivery 
review will provide the opportunity to review the resources committed to this area of 
work and to possibly re visit the current statement of priorities. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

That; 

(a) The Report be noted 

 and; 

(b) A further update is provided to the Committee by Amey in 18 
 months time. 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None 

13



14



 

COMMUNTIY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 29 JUNE 2009 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
Natalia Silver, Head of Economic and Community Services on 01432 260732 

 

 

 

 REVIEW OF COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT IN 
COMMUNITY SAFETY AND DRUGS PARTNERSHIP       
– CABINET’S RESPONSE 

Report By: Head of Economic and Community Services 

 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1. To consider Cabinet’s response to the recommendations made to it in the Scrutiny 
Review of Community Engagement in Community Safety and Drugs Partnership. 

Background 

2. In December 2008 this Committee approved the findings of the Scrutiny Review of 
Community Engagement in Community Safety and Drugs Partnership.   

3. The Committee agreed that the Executive's response to the Review including an 
action plan be reported to the first available meeting of the Committee after the 
Executive had approved its response; and that a further report on progress in 
response to the Review then be made after six months with consideration then being 
given to the need for any further reports to be made. 

4. Cabinet considered its response to the findings on 7 May 2009.  The report to 
Cabinet setting out the response to the Review is appended.  Cabinet agreed the 
recommendations as set out in the report to it.  An action plan is appended. 

 RECOMMENDATION 

THAT (a)  Cabinet’s response to the findings of the Review of Community 
Engagement in Community Safety and Drugs Partnership be 
noted, subject to any comments which the Committee wishes to 
make;  

 and 

 (b) a further report on progress in response to the Review  be made 
after six months with consideration then being given to the need 
for any further reports to be made. 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None 

AGENDA ITEM 8

15



16



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 a
n
d
 D
ru
g
s
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

  R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

N
o
. 
1
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 w
it
h
 T

o
w

n
 a

n
d
 P

a
ri
s
h
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 t
a
k
in

g
 i
n
to

 c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d

 l
ik

e
ly

 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
. 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

T
h
is

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
w
n
e
r 

B
y
 W

h
e
n
 

T
a
rg
e
t/
S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 C
ri
te
ri
a
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

A
rr

a
n
g
e
 a

 p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 t

o
 c

o
u
n
c
ils

 v
ia

 H
A

L
C

 
o
n
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

C
S

D
P

 
M

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

O
c
t 

0
9
 

G
re

a
te

r 
u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

b
y
 c

o
u
n
c
ils

 
 

E
x
p
lo

re
 r

a
is

in
g
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e
 H

C
S

D
P

 i
n
 

p
a
ri
s
h
 m

a
g
a
z
in

e
s
 

C
S

D
P

 
M

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

O
n
g
o
in

g
  

H
ig

h
e
r 

p
ro

fi
le

 o
f 

H
C

S
D

P
 a

t 
p
a
ri
s
h
 l
e
v
e
l 

 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 P

a
ri
s
h
 L

ia
is

o
n
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

to
 f

e
a
tu

re
 

H
C

S
D

P
 w

it
h
 t
o
w

n
 a

n
d
 p

a
ri
s
h
 c

o
u
n
c
ils

 

C
S

D
P

 
M

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

J
u
ly

 0
9
 

P
ro

fi
le

 i
n
 t

o
w

n
 a

n
d
 p

a
ri
s
h
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

n
e
w

s
le

tt
e
r 

 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

N
o
. 
2
 

T
o
w

n
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

C
h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 c

re
a
te

d
 a

s
 t
h
e
 a

n
c
h
o
r 

b
e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 n

e
w

ly
 f

o
rm

e
d
 L

o
c
a
l 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

a
n
d
 D

ru
g
s
 F

o
ru

m
s
. 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

T
h
is

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
w
n
e
r 

B
y
 W

h
e
n
 

T
a
rg
e
t/
S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 C
ri
te
ri
a
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

T
o
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
 

a
n
 

o
u
tl
in

e
 

o
f 

e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

a
 

T
o
w

n
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

C
h
a
m

p
io

n
 

C
S

D
P

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 
M

a
n

a
g
e
r 

J
u
ly

 0
9
 

O
u
tl
in

e
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 

 

T
o
 w

ri
te

 t
o
 T

o
w

n
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 r
e
q
u
e
s
ti
n
g
 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 o

n
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

s
k
in

g
 

fo
r 

a
 n

o
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 

C
S

D
P

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 
M

a
n

a
g
e
r 

J
u
ly

 0
9
 

N
o
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

 

 

17



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

N
o
. 
3
 

P
A

C
T

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

 v
a
lu

a
b
le

 t
o
o
l,
 b

u
t 

th
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 h

a
d
 d

e
e
p
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

s
 t

o
 h

o
w

 w
e
ll 

th
e
y
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g
. 

 A
 

s
e
p
a
ra

te
 r

e
v
ie

w
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
, 

p
o
s
s
ib

ly
 v

ia
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

re
a
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 P

A
C

T
 m

e
e
ti
n
g

s
. 

It
e
m

s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
: 

“O
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

” 
–
 s

h
o
u
ld

 P
A

C
T

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 b

e
 o

w
n
e
d
 b

y
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 P
o
lic

e
, 

T
o
w

n
 o

r 
P

a
ri
s
h
 C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 o
r 

a
 c

o
m

b
in

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
ll 

fo
u
r?

 
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 f

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 a

n
d
 u

s
in

g
 t

h
is

 a
s
 a

n
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 f

o
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

M
o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
 o

f 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

T
h
is

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
w
n
e
r 

B
y
 W

h
e
n
 

T
a
rg
e
t/
S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 C
ri
te
ri
a
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
9
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 C

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
R

e
v
is

e
d
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 I

m
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

N
o
. 
4
 

T
h
e
 D

ru
g
 a

n
d
 A

lc
o
h
o
l 
F

o
ru

m
s
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 a

n
d
 D

ru
g
s
 F

o
ru

m
s
 w

it
h
 a

 l
e
a
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 O
ff

ic
e
r,

 a
n
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 s

o
u
g
h
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 f

o
ru

m
s
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 w

id
e
r 

is
s
u
e
 o

f 
re

d
u
c
in

g
 c

ri
m

e
. 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

T
h
is

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
w
n
e
r 

B
y
 W

h
e
n
 

T
a
rg
e
t/
S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 C
ri
te
ri
a
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

T
o
 p

u
rs

u
e
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f

o
ru

m
s
 t
o
 r

e
ta

in
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 (

a
s
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 f

in
is

h
 i
n

 
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
),

 a
n
d
 e

x
p
lo

re
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 t

o
 

e
x
te

n
d
 r

o
le

 a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

th
e
 g

ro
u
p
s
. 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

S
a
fe

ty
 

M
a
n

a
g
e
r 

O
n
 g

o
in

g
  

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

T
o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 e

x
te

n
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

th
e
 f

o
ru

m
s
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 g

ro
u
p
s
. 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

S
a
fe

ty
 

M
a
n

a
g
e
r 

J
u
ly

 0
9
 

A
g
re

e
 o

n
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 r

o
le

 a
t 

n
e
x
t 

fo
ru

m
 c

h
a
ir
s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
  

 

 

18



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

N
o
. 
5
 

T
h
a
t 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
ff

ic
e
rs

 a
re

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

a
ri
s
h
 p

la
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
 i
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 p

la
n
s
. 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

T
h
is

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
w
n
e
r 

B
y
 W

h
e
n
 

T
a
rg
e
t/
S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 C
ri
te
ri
a
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

T
h
a
t 
a
n
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 t
ip

s
 s

h
e
e
t 
re

g
a
rd

in
g
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
 m

a
tt
e
rs

 i
s
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 f

o
r 

p
a
ri
s
h
e
s
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

a
ri
s
h
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

S
a
fe

ty
 P

o
lic

y
 

M
a
n

a
g
e
r 

N
o
v
 0

9
 

P
ro

d
u
c
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

d
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 

 

T
h
a
t 
c
lo

s
e
r 

w
o
rk

in
g
 t

a
k
e
s
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

P
a
ri
s
h
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 I
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

to
 

e
n
s
u
re

 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 p

a
ri
s
h
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

S
a
fe

ty
 P

o
lic

y
 

M
a
n

a
g
e
r 

O
n
 g

o
in

g
  

P
ro

fi
le

 o
f 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
 

in
 p

a
ri
s
h
 p

la
n
s
 

 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

N
o
. 
6
 

T
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 “

h
a
rd

 t
o
 r

e
a
c
h
” 

g
ro

u
p
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

 l
in

k
a
g
e
s
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

c
o
u
n
c
il,

 p
a
rt

n
e

r 
a
n
d
 

v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
. 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

T
h
is

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
w
n
e
r 

B
y
 W

h
e
n
 

T
a
rg
e
t/
S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 C
ri
te
ri
a
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

T
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 “

h
a
rd

 t
o
 r

e
a
c
h
” 

g
ro

u
p
s
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

2
0
0
9
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
f 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

. 

C
S

D
P

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 D

a
ta

 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

M
a
y
 0

9
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

fu
tu

re
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

 

 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

N
o
. 
7
 

T
h
a
t 

th
e
 n

e
w

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 p

ri
d
e
 g

ra
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
ty

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

s
m

a
ll 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
im

 t
o
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

u
t 

c
ri
m

e
. 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

T
h
is

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
w
n
e
r 

B
y
 W

h
e
n
 

T
a
rg
e
t/
S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 C
ri
te
ri
a
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

T
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 “

d
e
s
ig

n
 o

u
t 

c
ri
m

e
” 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 i
n
to

 
th

e
 n

e
w

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 p

ri
d
e
 g

ra
n
ts

 o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 

fr
o
m

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
. 

G
ra

n
ts

 a
n

d
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

M
a
n

a
g
e
r 

A
p
ri
l 
0
9
 

C
ri
te

ri
a
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 t

o
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

u
t 
c
ri
m

e
. 

 

    

19



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

N
o
. 
8
 

T
h
e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
fe

e
d
b
a
c
k
 i
s
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

e
d
 t
o
 a

ll 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 a
n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 b
o
th

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

n
g
a
g
e

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
o
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 p

e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
ri
m

e
. 

 A
ll 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

g
iv

in
g
 f

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 e

x
p
lo

it
e
d
 e

.g
. 

P
A

C
T

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
, 

P
a
ri
s
h
 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

, 
N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 W

a
tc

h
. 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

T
h
is

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
w
n
e
r 

B
y
 W

h
e
n
 

T
a
rg
e
t/
S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 C
ri
te
ri
a
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 C

o
u
n
c
il/

P
C

T
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

In
s
ig

h
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 &

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 

N
e
w

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 b

y
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

N
o
. 
9
 

P
u
b
lic

 e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

is
 a

 v
a
lu

a
b
le

 t
o
o
l 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

u
b
lic

 s
a
fe

ty
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

y
 t

ru
ly

 u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

. 
 A

 s
e
p
a
ra

te
 r

e
v
ie

w
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

 t
h
e
 q

u
a
n
ti
ty

 a
n
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
lic

 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

e
v
e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 o

r 
lik

e
ly

 t
o
 t

a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 w

h
o
le

 C
o
u
n
c
il.

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

T
h
is

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
w
n
e
r 

B
y
 W

h
e
n
 

T
a
rg
e
t/
S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 C
ri
te
ri
a
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 I

n
s
ig

h
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 &

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 

N
e
w

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 b

y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 

  

20



 
COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 29 JUNE 2009 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Geoff Hughes,  
Director of Regeneration, on 01432 260695 

 
 

 HEREFORD UNITED FOOTBALL GROUND LEASES 

Report By: Director of Regeneration 

 

Wards Affected 

 Central Ward 

Purpose 

1. To provide information to the Committee on the options for development of the 
football ground within the context of the wider ESG development. 

 Financial Implications 

2. Development costs for the football ground are not included in the funding proposals 
for ESG and are therefore unbudgeted. 

3. Compensation payments under the lease are unquantified, but will be substantial if 
pursued. 

Background 

4. This report gives a general analysis of Landlord and Tenant issues relating to 
premises generally and in particular the leasehold interest affecting the Hereford 
United Football Ground, and a commentary on the options open to the Council. 

5. The football ground was specifically included in the Masterplan proposals for ESG. 

Lease Details 

6. There are two leases relating to the Hereford United Football Ground, both dated 12th 
August, 1982.  One is for the ground itself and the terraces on the west side and the 
other is for the stand and parking area on the east side. 

 

7. The Lease for the ground is for a term of 75 years from 12th August, 1982 and the 
Lease for the stand is for 33 years from 12th August, 1982.  The tenant under both 
leases is Formsole Limited and the Football Club hold sub-leases. 

 

8. Both Leases contain a forfeiture clause in the event of non-payment of rent, breach 
of covenant or liquidation. All the covenants in the Leases have not been outlined for 
the purpose of this report. 

 

9. Both Leases are business leases protected under the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954 
(as amended) which provides that such a tenancy shall not come to an end unless 
terminated in accordance with the provisions of the Act.  Subject to the service of 
notices, as required by the Act, either the Tenant or the Landlord may apply to the 
Court for an order for the grant of a new tenancy.  In other words, the Leases do not 
terminate automatically on the Lease expiry date, but will continue until terminated in 
accordance with the Act, if the tenant remains in occupation. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 9

21



  

 

10. In this case, the premises are sub-let to the Football Club and it is in occupation. 
Therefore, it is the Club that has the protection of the Act, not the Tenant, Formsole 
Limited. 

 

11. Either the Landlord or the Tenant can serve notice to terminate the tenancy, including 
the right to apply for a new tenancy. 

 

12. The Landlord serves a termination notice under S.25 of the Act or the Tenant serves 
a request for a new tenancy pursuant to S.26.  The Landlord may agree to the grant 
of a new tenancy or seek to oppose the grant on one of a number of grounds set out 
in S.30. 

 

13. There are seven grounds: 
 

(a) failure to repair in accordance with a covenant to do so in the Lease; 

(b) persistent delay in paying rent; 

(c) other substantial breach of covenant; 

(d) Landlord has offered and is willing to provide or secure the provision of 
alternative accommodation for the Tenant – on reasonable terms having 
regard to the current tenancy and to all other relevant circumstances and that 
the accommodation and the time it is available are suitable to the Tenant’s 
requirements; 

(e) This relates to sub-letting on non-economic grounds and is not relevant in the 
case of the football ground; 

(f) The Landlord intends to demolish or re-construct the premises or a substantial 
part, which could not be done without obtaining possession of the premises; 

(g) Landlord intends to occupy the premises for the purposes or partly for the 
purposes of a business to be carried on by him. 

 

14. There are various rules and procedures regarding service of the notices which are of 
a technical legal nature. 

 

15. Apart from the above, it is always open to the parties to negotiate an early surrender 
of the Lease which would involve, in this particular case, relocation and/or 
compensation. 

Compensation 

16. If the Landlord obtains possession in accordance with grounds 12(e), (f) or (g) above, 
the Tenant is entitled to compensation.  These are referred to as the “non tenant 
fault” grounds. 

 

Development Options 

17. There are a number of options for development: 

(a) The head tenant carries out development using their own resources, subject 
to renegotiation of the lease to permit a commercial development of part of 
the site. 

(b) The head tenant and/or the football club, as sub-tenant, develops the ground 
for sports and football purposes only. 

(c) The football club is relocated and the site developed by the head tenant. 

22



  

 

(d) The football club is relocated, the lease is terminated and the head tenant 
compensated for loss of their lease interest. The Council/ESG redevelop the 
site. 

(e) The lease is terminated. The club is not relocated and ceases to exist. The 
tenant is compensated for the loss of their lease interest. The Council/ESG 
redevelop the site. 

 
18. The existing lease prohibits the development of the football ground, except as an 

athletic sports and football ground and ancillary uses, and subject to Council 
approval. 

 
19. The Council and ESG held a number of meetings with the head tenants and the 

football club to discuss proposals for a commercial redevelopment of part of the 
ground to fund the refurbishment of the football ground and stands. Discussions had 
reached the stage of preparing Heads of Terms for a re-structuring of the lease to 
permit such a development. However, it has become clear that neither the head 
tenant nor the football club is prepared to proceed with such a development in the 
current financial circumstances. 

 
20. Options leading to the termination of the lease and relocation or otherwise of the 

football club would result in substantial costs to the Council, both in compensation 
and/or relocation costs and subsequent site development costs. 

 

21. At present, there are no financially feasible or appropriate options for development of 
the football ground. The Council would only take forward any development proposals 
in consultation with the Football Club and Formsole Limited.  It is important to note 
that at this point in time no changes are proposed to the current position and the 
Football Club is secure in its current arrangement 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the report be noted. 
 
 
 

CONSULTATION 

• Legal Services 

• Asset Management and Property Services 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None Identified 

23



24



 

COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 29 JUNE 2009 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Shirley Coultas, Community Services Accountant Tel: 01432 261825 

 

   

 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING  

Report By: Director of Resources 

 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide. 

Purpose 

1. To advise the committee of the final revenue outturn position for Community Services 
for 2008/09 and to outline the agreed budget for 2009/10 and highlight any emerging 
pressures that have been identified. 

 Financial Implications 

            Revenue Outturn 2008/09 

2. In overall terms the final revenue outturn variance for Community services was a net 
overspend of £63,000. Cultural services, Community Leisure and HALO, Parks and 
Countryside, Public Rights of Way and Cultural and Leisure management form part of 
the Environment Directorate and Social and Economic Regeneration and Head of 
Economic and Community regeneration form part of the Regeneration Directorate. 
The variances on the individual areas form part of their respective Directorate’s final 
outturn position. 

3. A summary of the final revenue outturn variances is set out below, with further detail 
included in Appendix 1.  

2008/09 Final Outturn Variance 
Over/under spend 

Service Area £000 

Cultural Services 205 

Community Leisure & HALO  13 

Parks Countryside & Public Rights of Way -142 

Head of Culture & Leisure 47 

Social & Economic Regeneration -50 

Head of Economic & Community 
Regeneration 

-10 

Community Services Total 63 

 

Culture and Leisure 

4. As previously projected, expenditure exceeded budget by £200,000 in relation to the 
HALO job evaluation costs. The council has a legal requirement to meet in full the 
financial impact of increases in pay of transferred posts affected by the single status 
agreement. The original central budget was set based on assumptions that were 

AGENDA ITEM 10

25



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 29 JUNE 2009 
 
 

reasonable at the time about pay grades. Over time funding has become insufficient 
as staff progressed through the pay grades.  For 2008/09 this was met by transferring 
the sum from reserves at year end. From 2009/10 the amount is being built into the 
council’s base budget. 

5.  Libraries overspent by £102,000. This was mainly due to insufficient budget to meet IT 
SLA costs including maintenance of the public access PC’s resulting in an overspend 
of £80,000, along with other minor pension costs and shortfalls in income. 

6.  Tourism overspent by £82,000 mainly due to staff costs and shortfalls in income. 

7.  There was an overspend on Public Rights of Way of £30,000 due to contract inflation 
on works carried out by Amey Wye Valley Ltd 

8.  There was an underspend of £172,000 on Parks and Countryside in relation to works 
held back or funded from Commuted sums in order to manage budget pressures 
within the Environment Directorate. 

9.  An overspend on the Head of Culture and Leisure of £47,000 arose due to retirement 
costs of the previous Head of Service. The net overspend for Culture and Leisure was 
£123,000. 

Economic and Community Services 

10. There was an underspend £46,000 for Economic Development due to a reduced 
contribution to the Edgar Street Grid project being required on matched funded costs. 
There were also staff vacancy savings of £6,000 resulting in a total Economic 
Development underspend of £52,000. 

11. Following an evaluation by Government Office for the West Midlands and an external 
audit report, the Action for Regenerating Communities in Herefordshire (ARCH) 
European project was completed at a net cost to Community Services of £28,000. 
Community Regeneration also made savings of £16,000 on Community grants. 

12. Further savings of £10,000 were made within the Head of Economic and Community 
services costs. The overall net underspend for Economic and Community Services 
was £60,000. 

Revenue Budget 2009/10  

13. The total budget for Community Services in 2009/10 is £10,184,000.  This is the 
controllable budget total before support costs are factored in.  A breakdown of the 
budget is set out in Appendix 2. 

14. The Medium Term Financial Strategy approved by council sets the broad framework 
for service revenue budgets for 2009/10 and onwards. Inflation was added to direct 
employee headings and utilities.  Client and customer income budget targets were 
increased by 2.5%.  

15. Additional budget to support partner job evaluation pressures in HALO of £240,000 
and Amey Wye Valley Limited of £11,000 has also added to Community Services 
budgets. 

16. £140,000 has also been added to the Parks budget for 2009/10 to reduce an income 
target no longer receivable. This relates to funding from Hereford City Council that is 
no longer used to fund routine grass cutting and is now used for additional project 
work. 

26



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 29 JUNE 2009 
 
 
17. As a result of the Performance Improvement Cycle (PIC), which concluded in January 

Directors were challenged about spending and saving proposals by the Director of 
Resources and the Policy and Performance team.  This gave rise to the following 
changes to budgets due to the detail of expenditure requirements and savings 
identified. 

 Further items identified by Directors through PIC process Budget 
Additions £000 

 Implementation of free swimming for children and over 60’s  100 

 Additional support for Citizens Advice Bureau to sustain their 
activity and meet demands due to downturn of economy 

20 

 Total 120 

18. There has also been an adjustment to the 2009/10 service budgets in relation to ICT 
budgets.  These are now being held centrally and will be allocated to the service at the 
end of the year. This means that budget pressures in relation to public access PC’s in 
Libraries will no longer occur as this will be managed within the ICT budget. 

19. There has also been a transfer in 2009/10 of £117,000 from Social and Economic 
Regeneration in relation to Community Safety to the Environment Health & Trading 
Standards service budget and it is assumed that this will now be reported to 
Environment Scrutiny. 

20. Tourism has also been transferred in 2009/10 from Culture & Leisure to Social & 
Economic Regeneration, both within Community Services. 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the report be noted.  

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None identified 

APPENDIX 

Appendix 1 – Summary Community Services Outturn Variance Report 2008/09 

Appendix 2 – Summary Community Services Revenue Budget Report 2009/10 
 

27



28



APPENDIX 1

Final Variance 

Over/-Under 

spend  for 

2008/09

£000

Arts 2

Cultural Services Staff 17

Heritage 25

Leisure Services -23 

Library Service 102

Tourism 82

Total for Cultural Services 205

Community Leisure -2 

Leisure 15

Total for Community Leisure + HALO 13

Parks & Countryside -172 

Public Rights of Way (PROW) 30

Total for Parks & Countryside and PROW -142 

Head of Culture and Leisure 47

TOTAL CULTURE AND LEISURE 123

Economic Development -52 

Community Safety 0

Community Regeneration 18

Regeneration Programmes -16 

Total for Social & Economic Regeneration -50 

Head of Economic and Community Regeneration -10 

TOTAL COMMUNITY REGENERATION -60 

TOTAL COMMUNITY SERVICES 63

SUMMARY COMMUNITY SERVICES OUTTURN VARIANCE REPORT 

2008/09

29



APPENDIX 2

Gross 

Budget Income

Net 

Budget

£000 £000 £000

Arts 592 0 592

Cultural Services Staff 179 0 179

Heritage 595 -46 549

Leisure Services 222 -25 197

Library Service 2,182 -330 1,852

Total for Cultural Services 3,770 -401 3,369

Community Leisure 22 0 22

Leisure 1,862 0 1,862

Total for Community Leisure & HALO 1,884 0 1,884

Parks & Countryside 1,815 -73 1,742

Public Rights of Way (PROW) 628 -6 622

Total for Parks & Countryside and PROW 2,443 -79 2,364

Head of Culture and Leisure 99 0 99

TOTAL CULTURE AND LEISURE 8,196 -480 7,716

Economic Development 769 0 769

Community Regeneration 780 -6 774

Regeneration Programmes 294 -11 283

Tourism 1,068 -583 485

Total for Social & Economic Regeneration 2,911 -600 2,311

Head of Economic and Community Regeneration 157 0 157

TOTAL COMMUNITY REGENERATION 3,068 -600 2,468

TOTAL COMMUNITY SERVICES 11,264 -1,080 10,184

SUMMARY COMMUNITY SERVICES REVENUE BUDGET REPORT 2009/10

30



Further information on the subject of this report is available from John Eades, Improvement Manager 
 on 01432 260985 

 

 

 ENVIRONMENT & CULTURE AND REGENERATION 
DIRECTORATES: PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR-1 
APRIL 2008 – 31 MARCH 2009 

Report By: Improvement Manager 

 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1. To update Members on the achievement of targets for 2008-09 relevant to the 
Community Services Scrutiny Committee and contained within the Environment & Culture 
and Regeneration Directorates Plans. This report adopts a similar format to that of the 
Integrated Corporate Performance Report (ICPR). 

Financial Implications 

2. None. 

Background 

3. The Council’s Corporate Plan sets out its objectives, priorities, targets and key actions for 
each of the three years 2008-11. It includes all the indicators and targets in the new 
Local Area Agreement (LAA), as well as those in the Herefordshire Community Strategy 
(HCS). Each Directorate’s plan sets out the contribution, in terms of objectives, priorities, 
targets and key actions, it will make to achieving the objectives of the Council’s 
Corporate Plan as well as to the achievement of other Directorate priorities. Progress 
needs to be assessed regularly, together with the risks to achievement and the action 
being taken to address these and improve performance. 

4. For those indicators where it is possible to show comparative direction of travel the 
position has improved consistently from report to report and compared with l2007-08. 
Again there has also been an increase in the number of indicators where comparative 
data is available. 

Progress against the Council’s Corporate Plan and Directorate Plans 

5. Following is an analysis of performance against target in relation to both the Corporate 
Plan and Directorate plans. For comparison, December’s figures are in brackets: 

AGENDA ITEM 11

31



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 29 JUNE 2009 
 

 
 

 No. of 
indicators 

On course or 
achieved 
target (or 
establish 
baseline) 

Some 
progress, 

but data/lack 
of data or 
analysis 
suggests 
that the 

target may 
not be 

achieved 

Target not 
achieved/not 
expected to 
be achieved 

Corporate Plan (including LAA 
and HCS) 

25 

(25) 

21 

(21) 

2 

(3) 

2 

(1) 

of which     

Economic Development and 
Enterprise theme 

10 

(10) 

8 

(7) 

1 

(2) 

1 

(1) 

Safer and Stronger theme 13 

(13) 

11 

(12) 

1 

(1) 

1 

(1) 

Sustainable communities 
theme 

2 

(2) 

2 

(2) 

0 

(0) 

0 

(0) 

Local Area Agreement (LAA) 13 

(12) 

11 

(12) 

1 

(0) 

1 

(0) 

Herefordshire Community 
Strategy (HCS) 

16 

(16) 

14 

(12) 

1 

(3) 

1 

(1) 

     

All ICPR reported National 
Indicators (NIs) 

20 

(20) 

16 

(18) 

2 

(1) 

2 

(1) 

All Directorate reported NIs 45 

(45) 

30 

(30) 

12 

(14) 

3 

(1) 

     

All ICPR reported indicators 33 

(33) 

26 

(25) 

2 

(5) 

5 

(3) 

All Directorate reported 
indicators 

58 

(58) 

40 

(37) 

12 

(18) 

6 

(3) 

Direction of travel 

6. Analysis of those indicators where it is possible to assess direction of travel is detailed 
below: 

Direction of Travel 

 July September December March 

Improving 5 7 9 12 

No real change 3 3 2 1 

Deteriorating 1 2 2 4 

Total 9 12 13 17 

32



Further information on the subject of this report is available from John Eades, Improvement Manager 
 on 01432 260985 

 

 

Headlines 

• Generally positive in respect of Direction of Travel. 

• Changes since December: 

Green from Amber  
- Local “Number employed in knowledge intensive industries” 

- NI 151 “Overall employment rate” 

- BVPI 128 “the number of vehicle crimes per year per 1,000 population” 

- Local “overall crime numbers” 

- NI 42 ‘perceptions of drug use or drug dealing as a problem” 

Amber from Green 
- NI 30 ‘re-offending rate of prolific and priority offenders” 

Red from Green 
- NI 39 ‘alcohol harm related hospital admission rates per 100,000 population” 

Red from Amber 

- BVPI 225 “actions against domestic violence” 

- NI 18 “adult re-offending rates for those under probation supervision” 

NI 166 “average earnings of employees in the area” remained at Red 

BVPI 126 “domestic burglaries per year, per 1,000 households” remained at Red 

BVPI 127b “robberies per year, per 1,000 population remained at Red. 

Overall performance 

7. The overall position is positive with 69% of indicators Green and only 10% Red. 

8. The following six indicators are judged Red: 

- NI 18 “adult re-offending rates for those under probation supervision” 

- NI 39 ‘alcohol harm related hospital admission rates per 100,000 population” 

- NI 166 “average earnings of employees in the area” 

- BVPI 126 “domestic burglaries per year, per 1,000 households” 

- BVPI 127b “robberies per year, per 1,000 population. 

- BVPI 225 “actions against domestic violence” 

9. Details of the indicators reflecting each of the Corporate Plan themes are given in 
Appendix A. Within each theme indicators are separated into those that are included in 
the ICPR and other, related, indicators that are included in the Directorate Plans. 

Customer satisfaction 

10. Some services in both Directorates have had the benefit of regular monthly customer 
satisfaction surveys since March 2008, with results being available from June based on 
the new directorate structures. Coverage has gradually increased in the Environment and 
Culture Directorate, but only covers the Planning and Transportation division in the 
Regeneration Directorate at present. 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT subject to any comments which Members may wish to make, the 
report be noted. 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None 

33



34



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A

R
e
a
so
n
 f
o
r 
ju
d
g
e
m
e
n
ts

N
IS

L
A
A

H
C
S

C
P

B
V
P
I
A
P
A

J
u
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r

M
a
rc
h

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
D
e
ce
m
b
e
r

M
a
rc
h

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
D
e
ce
m
b
e
r

M
a
rc
h

1
5
2

Y
e
s

W
o
rk
in
g
 a
g
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
n
 o
u
t 
o
f 

w
o
rk
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

8
.9
0
%

0
.5
%
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 b
y
 

2
0
1
0
-1
1

8
.6
%

(t
o
 M
a
y
)

8
.8
0
%

A
A

G
G

� ���

O
n
-c
o
u
rs
e
 t
o
 a
ch
ie
v
e
 e
n
d
-

o
f-
L
A
A
 t
a
rg
e
t 
a
n
d
 b
e
tt
e
r 

th
a
n
 l
a
st
 y
e
a
r

1
6
1

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

L
e
a
rn
e
rs
 a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 a
 L
e
v
e
l 
1
 

q
u
a
lif
ic
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 l
it
e
ra
c
y

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

5
8

3
2

D
a
ta
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 i
n
 

J
u
n
e

A
A

A
A

A
ct
iv
it
y
 s
h
o
w
in
g
 p
ro
g
re
ss
 

to
w
a
rd
s 
ta
rg
e
t,
 b
u
t 
n
o
 

o
u
tt
u
rn
 a
v
a
ila
b
le

1
6
2

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

L
e
a
rn
e
rs
 a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 a
n
 E
n
tr
y
 

L
e
v
e
l 
3
 q
u
a
lif
ic
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

n
u
m
e
ra
c
y

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

D
a
ta
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 i
n
 

J
u
n
e

G
G

G
G

O
u
tt
u
rn
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
, 

b
u
t 
a
ct
io
n
 p
la
n
 b
e
in
g
 

d
e
liv
e
re
d

1
6
3

Y
e
s

W
o
rk
in
g
 a
g
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 

q
u
a
lif
ie
d
 t
o
 a
t 
le
a
s
t 
L
e
v
e
l 
2
 o
r 

h
ig
h
e
r

 T
h
e
 d
a
ta
 f
o
r 
th
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
w
ill
 

b
e
 d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
In
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
, 

U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
 a
n
d
 S
k
ill
s
 (
D
IU
S
) 

a
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
s
 

c
a
le
n
d
a
r 
y
e
a
r 
d
a
ta
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

O
ff
ic
e
 f
o
r 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 

(O
N
S
) 
A
n
n
u
a
l 
P
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 

S
u
rv
e
y
 (
A
P
S
).

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

6
9
.8
0
%

G
G

G
G

B
a
se
lin
e
 e
st
a
b
lis
h
e
d

1
6
4

Y
e
s

W
o
rk
in
g
 a
g
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 

q
u
a
lif
ie
d
 t
o
 a
t 
le
a
s
t 
L
e
v
e
l 
3
 o
r 

h
ig
h
e
r 

T
h
e
s
e
 a
re
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 

c
o
lle
c
te
d
 v
ia
 O
N
S
’ 
A
n
n
u
a
l 

P
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 S
u
rv
e
y
 a
n
d
 a
re
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 w
it
h
 a
n
 8
 m
o
n
th
 t
im
e
 

la
g
. 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

D
a
ta
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 i
n
 

J
u
n
e

G
G

G
G

O
u
tt
u
rn
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
, 

b
u
t 
a
ct
io
n
 p
la
n
 b
e
in
g
 

d
e
liv
e
re
d

1
6
5

Y
e
s

W
o
rk
in
g
 a
g
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 

q
u
a
lif
ie
d
 t
o
 a
t 
le
a
s
t 
L
e
v
e
l 
4
 o
r 

h
ig
h
e
r 

T
h
e
s
e
 a
re
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 

c
o
lle
c
te
d
 v
ia
 O
N
S
’ 
A
n
n
u
a
l 

P
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 S
u
rv
e
y
 a
n
d
 a
re
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 w
it
h
 a
n
 8
 m
o
n
th
 t
im
e
 

la
g
.

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

D
a
ta
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 i
n
 

J
u
n
e

G
G

G
G

O
u
tt
u
rn
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
, 

b
u
t 
a
ct
io
n
 p
la
n
 b
e
in
g
 

d
e
liv
e
re
d

1
6
6

Y
e
s

A
v
e
ra
g
e
 e
a
rn
in
g
s
 o
f 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
re
a

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

0
.8
9
:1

£
3
8
4
.4
0

>
0
.8
9
:1

>
£
3
8
4
.4
0

0
.8
7
:1

£
3
8
9
.4
0

0
.8
7
:1

£
3
8
9
.4
0

A
A

R
R

� ���

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 e
a
rn
in
g
s 
h
a
v
e
 

in
cr
e
a
se
d
 i
n
 

H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
, 
th
e
 g
a
p
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 W
e
st
 M
id
la
n
d
s 

h
a
s 
w
id
e
n
e
d

1
7
1

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
e
w
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 r
e
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
 r
a
te
 

p
e
r 
1
0
0
,0
0
0
 r
e
s
id
e
n
t 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 a
g
e
d
 1
6
+

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

4
0
.1

(2
0
0
6
)

T
a
rg
e
t 
to
 b
e
 

s
e
t 
M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
0
9

5
9
.2
%

(2
0
0
7
)

5
7
.9
3
%

(2
0
0
5
-0
7
 

a
v
e
ra
g
e
)

A
A

G
G

B
a
se
lin
e
 e
st
a
b
lis
h
e
d

1
7
2

Y
e
s

%
 o
f 
s
m
a
ll 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 a
n
 

a
re
a
 s
h
o
w
in
g
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 

g
ro
w
th

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

R
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 O
N
S
 

a
t 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r

G
G

G
G

A
ct
iv
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

sh
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
ct
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
se
lin
e

Y
e
s

N
u
m
b
e
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
d
 i
n
 

k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 a
n
d
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 

in
te
n
s
iv
e
 i
n
d
u
s
tr
ie
s

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

1
0
,9
2
3

>
1
0
,9
2
3

1
1
,7
2
2
 (
2
0
0
7
)

A
A

A
G

� ���
B
e
tt
e
r 
th
a
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 
a
n
d
 l
a
st
 

y
e
a
r

O
u
tt
u
rn
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 A
p
ri
l

O
u
tt
u
rn
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9

O
u
tt
u
rn
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9

O
u
tt
u
rn
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 A
p
ri
l 

2
0
0
9

O
u
tt
u
rn
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
9

O
u
tt
u
rn
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
9

O
u
tt
u
rn
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
9

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

In
d
ic
a
to
r

L
e
a
d
 D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

O
u
tt
u
rn
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 A
p
ri
l

L
a
te
s
t 
O
u
tt
u
rn

R
A
G
 r
a
ti
n
g

D
ir
e
ct
io
n
 o
f 
T
ra
v
e
l

O
u
tt
u
rn
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9

O
th
e
r 
re
la
te
d
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e

2
0
0
7
-0
8
 

O
u
tt
u
rn

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

T
a
rg
e
t

O
u
tt
u
rn
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r

IC
P
R
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs

35



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A

R
e
a
so
n
 f
o
r 
ju
d
g
e
m
e
n
ts

N
IS

L
A
A

H
C
S

C
P

B
V
P
I
A
P
A

J
u
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r

M
a
rc
h

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
D
e
ce
m
b
e
r

M
a
rc
h

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
D
e
ce
m
b
e
r

M
a
rc
h

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

In
d
ic
a
to
r

L
e
a
d
 D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

L
a
te
s
t 
O
u
tt
u
rn

R
A
G
 r
a
ti
n
g

D
ir
e
ct
io
n
 o
f 
T
ra
v
e
l

2
0
0
7
-0
8
 

O
u
tt
u
rn

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

T
a
rg
e
t

1
5
1

O
v
e
ra
ll 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
ra
te

T
h
e
s
e
 a
re
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 

c
o
lle
c
te
d
  
v
ia
 O
N
S
’ 
A
n
n
u
a
l 

P
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 S
u
rv
e
y
 a
n
d
 a
re
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 w
it
h
 a
n
 8
 m
o
n
th
 t
im
e
 

la
g
.

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

7
8
.7
0
%

7
9
.5
%
 (
L
a
te
s
t 

o
u
tt
u
rn
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

is
 f
o
r 
A
p
ri
l 
0
6
 t
o
 

M
a
rc
h
 0
7
 -
 n
e
x
t 

u
p
d
a
te
 d
u
e
 M
a
y
 

0
9
)

A
A

A
G

� ���
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
ce
 b
e
tt
e
r 
th
a
n
 

p
re
v
io
u
sl
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 y
e
a
r

1
5
3

W
o
rk
in
g
 a
g
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 c
la
im
in
g
 

o
u
t 
o
f 
w
o
rk
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

w
o
rs
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm

in
g
 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s

D
a
ta
 i
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 b
y
 

J
o
b
c
e
n
tr
e
 P
lu
s
 w
it
h
 a
 6
 m
o
n
th
 

ti
m
e
 l
a
g

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

8
.8
%
 (
to
 A
u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
0
8
)

A
A

A
A

D
a
ta
 o
n
ly
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 

A
u
g
u
st

1
7
3

P
e
o
p
le
 f
a
lli
n
g
 o
u
t 
o
f 
w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 

o
n
 t
o
 i
n
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

4
1
.8
%
 (
fo
re
c
a
s
t)

G
G

G
G

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 f
in
a
l 
o
u
tt
u
rn
 

a
w
a
it
e
d
, 
b
a
se
lin
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 

e
st
a
b
lis
h
e
d

1
7
4

S
k
ill
s
 g
a
p
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
rs

T
h
is
 d
a
ta
 i
s
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

L
S
C
 f
ro
m
 a
 b
ie
n
n
ia
l 
s
u
rv
e
y
.

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

6
%
 (
2
0
0
7
 f
o
r 

H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 &
 

W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
)

G
G

G
G

B
a
se
lin
e
 e
st
a
b
lis
h
e
d

4
Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

%
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 f
e
e
l 
th
e
y
 c
a
n
 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 

lo
c
a
lit
y

D
a
ta
 i
s
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

P
la
c
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
 b
ie
n
n
ia
lly
.

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

2
8
.8
0
%

G
G

G
G

B
a
s
e
lin
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d

6
Y
e
s

Y
e
s

P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
g
u
la
r 

v
o
lu
n
te
e
ri
n
g
 

D
a
ta
 i
s
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

P
la
c
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
 b
ie
n
n
ia
lly
.

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

2
9
%

G
G

G
G

B
a
s
e
lin
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d

9
Y
e
s

Y
e
s

U
s
e
 o
f 
p
u
b
lic
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

C
u
lt
u
re

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

4
7
.9
0
%

4
7
.9
0
%

A
G

G
G

B
a
s
e
lin
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d

1
1

Y
e
s

E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
e
 a
rt
s

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

C
u
lt
u
re

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

4
6
.4
0
%

4
6
.4
0
%

A
G

G
G

B
a
s
e
lin
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d

1
7

D
e
le
te
d

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

P
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
a
n
ti
-s
o
c
ia
l 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r

D
a
ta
 i
s
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

P
la
c
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
 b
ie
n
n
ia
lly
.

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

C
u
lt
u
re

2
7
%

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

1
2
%

A
G

G
G

B
a
s
e
lin
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d

N
o
 d
a
ta

N
o
 d
a
ta

N
o
 d
a
ta

S
a
fe
r 
a
n
d
 S
tr
o
n
g
e
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

IC
P
R
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs

N
o
 d
a
ta

36



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A

R
e
a
so
n
 f
o
r 
ju
d
g
e
m
e
n
ts

N
IS

L
A
A

H
C
S

C
P

B
V
P
I
A
P
A

J
u
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r

M
a
rc
h

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
D
e
ce
m
b
e
r

M
a
rc
h

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
D
e
ce
m
b
e
r

M
a
rc
h

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

In
d
ic
a
to
r

L
e
a
d
 D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

L
a
te
s
t 
O
u
tt
u
rn

R
A
G
 r
a
ti
n
g

D
ir
e
ct
io
n
 o
f 
T
ra
v
e
l

2
0
0
7
-0
8
 

O
u
tt
u
rn

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

T
a
rg
e
t

2
1

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

D
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

a
b
o
u
t 
a
n
ti
s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
a
n
d
 

c
ri
m
e
 b
y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 

p
o
lic
e

D
a
ta
 i
s
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

P
la
c
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
 b
ie
n
n
ia
lly
.

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

C
u
lt
u
re

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

2
5
.4
0
%

G
G

G
G

B
a
s
e
lin
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d

3
0

Y
e
s

R
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 r
a
te
 o
f 
p
ro
lif
ic
 a
n
d
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 (
P
P
O
)

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

6
4

4
9

N
o
 d
a
ta

2
7

3
0

D
a
ta
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 i
n
 

J
u
n
e

R
A

G
A

� ���
� ���

� ���

In
cr
e
a
se
d
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
n
 

sy
st
e
m
 m
a
y
 m
e
a
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 

is
 n
o
t 
a
ch
ie
v
e
d

3
9

Y
e
s
 

(L
o
c
a
l)

A
lc
o
h
o
l-
h
a
rm

 r
e
la
te
d
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m
is
s
io
n
 r
a
te
s
 p
e
r 
1
0
0
,0
0
0

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

1
1
9
9

1
2
6
0

2
7
2
.8

(@
 J
u
n
e
)

2
6
5
.3

1
2
4
9

R
G

G
R

� ���
� ���

� ���
T
a
rg
e
t 
n
o
t 
a
ch
ie
v
e
d
 a
n
d
 

w
o
rs
e
 t
h
a
n
 l
a
st
 y
e
a
r

4
0

Y
e
s

D
ru
g
 u
s
e
rs
 i
n
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

tr
e
a
tm
e
n
t

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

5
2
0

5
3
0

D
u
e
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r

D
u
e
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry

5
3
3

5
2
8
 (
q
u
a
rt
e
r 
3
)

R
A

G
G

� ���
� ���

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 f
ig
u
re
s 
a
w
a
it
e
d
, 

b
e
tt
e
r 
th
a
n
 l
a
st
 y
e
a
r

4
7

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

9
9
a

P
e
o
p
le
 k
ill
e
d
 o
r 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
ly
 

in
ju
re
d
 i
n
 r
o
a
d
 t
ra
ff
ic
 a
c
c
id
e
n
ts

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

1
3
3
 (
2
0
0
7
)

1
2
9
 (
2
0
0
8
)

3
6
 

(J
a
n
u
a
ry
 t
o
 

J
u
n
e
)

5
6

(J
a
n
u
a
ry
 t
o
 

A
u
g
u
s
t)

8
4

(J
a
n
u
a
ry
 t
o
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r)

9
3

G
G

G
G

� ���
� ���

� ���
� ���

T
a
rg
e
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 a
n
d
 

b
e
tt
e
r 
th
a
n
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r

4
8

9
9
b

C
h
ild
re
n
 k
ill
e
d
 o
r 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
ly
 

in
ju
re
d
 i
n
 r
o
a
d
 t
ra
ff
ic
 a
c
c
id
e
n
ts

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

1
1
 (
2
0
0
7
)

1
1
 (
2
0
0
8
)

4

(J
a
n
u
a
ry
 t
o
 

J
u
n
e
)

4

(J
a
n
u
a
ry
 t
o
 

A
u
g
u
s
t)

6

(J
a
n
u
a
ry
 t
o
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r)

6
G

G
G

G
� ���

� ���
� ���

� ���
T
a
rg
e
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 a
n
d
 

b
e
tt
e
r 
th
a
n
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r

9
9
c

T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 s
lig
h
tl
y
 

in
ju
re
d
 i
n
 r
o
a
d
 t
ra
ff
ic
 c
o
lli
s
io
n
s

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

7
1
3

<
7
1
3

3
0
1

(J
a
n
u
a
ry
 t
o
 

J
u
n
e
)

3
9
5
 

(J
a
n
u
a
ry
 t
o
 

A
u
g
u
s
t)

5
7
2

(J
a
n
u
a
ry
 t
o
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r)

6
3
2

R
G

G
G

� ���
� ���

� ���
� ���

T
a
rg
e
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 a
n
d
 

b
e
tt
e
r 
th
a
n
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r

1
2
6

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 b
u
rg
la
ri
e
s
 p
e
r 
y
e
a
r,
 

p
e
r 
1
,0
0
0
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

3
.9

<
3
.9

0
.8

2
3
.1

4
.1

A
A

R
R

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

� ���
� ���

T
a
rg
e
t 
n
o
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 a
n
d
 

w
o
rs
e
 t
h
a
n
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r

1
2
7
a

V
io
le
n
t 
c
ri
m
e
 p
e
r 
y
e
a
r,
 p
e
r 

1
,0
0
0
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

1
5
.6

<
1
5
.6

3
.7

7
.6

1
0
.9

1
3
.9

G
G

G
G

� ���
� ���

� ���
� ���

T
a
rg
e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 a
n
d
 

b
e
tt
e
r 
th
a
n
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r

1
2
7
b

R
o
b
b
e
ri
e
s
 p
e
r 
y
e
a
r,
 p
e
r 
1
,0
0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

0
.2

<
0
.2

0
.1

0
.2

0
.2

0
.3

A
R

R
R

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

� ���
� ���

� ���

L
a
te
s
t 
o
u
tt
u
rn
 i
s
 w
o
rs
e
 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r

1
2
8

T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
v
e
h
ic
le
 c
ri
m
e
s
 

p
e
r 
y
e
a
r,
 p
e
r 
1
,0
0
0
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 

in
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

5
<
5

1
.2

2
.5

3
.6

4
.8

G
A

A
G

� ���
� ���

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

� ���
B
e
tt
e
r 
th
a
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 
a
n
d
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r

2
2
5

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

v
io
le
n
c
e

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

8
1
.8

>
8
1
.8

N
o
 d
a
ta

8
1
.8

8
1
.8

8
1
.8
 (
fo
re
ca
st
)

R
A

A
R

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

T
a
rg
e
t 
n
o
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 a
n
d
 

s
a
m
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a
s
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r

Y
e
s

O
v
e
ra
ll 
c
ri
m
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

1
1
,1
7
2

<
1
1
,1
7
2

3
,8
5
0

5
,6
6
2

8
,1
0
3

1
0
,4
7
1

A
A

A
G

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

� ���
� ���

B
e
tt
e
r 
th
a
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 
a
n
d
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r

Y
e
s

P
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
p
e
e
d
in
g
 t
ra
ff
ic
 

a
s
 a
 p
ro
b
le
m
 i
n
 y
o
u
r 
lo
c
a
l 
a
re
a

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

D
a
ta
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 

a
v
a
ila
b
le

R
G

G
G

O
u
tt
u
rn
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

b
u
t 
b
a
s
e
lin
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d

Y
e
s

F
e
a
r 
o
f 
c
ri
m
e
 a
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 P
la
c
e
 S
u
rv
e
y

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

D
a
ta
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 

a
v
a
ila
b
le

R
G

G
G

O
u
tt
u
rn
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

b
u
t 
b
a
s
e
lin
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d

1
0
4

2
Y
J

S
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 M
is
u
s
e
: 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 m
is
u
s
e
 

n
e
e
d
s
 w
h
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
in
 5
 w
o
rk
in
g
 

d
a
y
s
 a
n
d
, 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 e
a
rl
y
 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
e
y
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 w
it
h
in
 1
0
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 d
a
y
s
 (
S
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 

M
is
u
s
e
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t)

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

1
0
0
%

T
o
 m
e
e
t 
o
r 

e
x
c
e
e
d
 9
5
%

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

G
G

G
G

� ���
� ���

� ���
� ���

B
e
tt
e
r 
th
a
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 
a
n
d
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r

37



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A

R
e
a
so
n
 f
o
r 
ju
d
g
e
m
e
n
ts

N
IS

L
A
A

H
C
S

C
P

B
V
P
I
A
P
A

J
u
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r

M
a
rc
h

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
D
e
ce
m
b
e
r

M
a
rc
h

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
D
e
ce
m
b
e
r

M
a
rc
h

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

In
d
ic
a
to
r

L
e
a
d
 D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

L
a
te
s
t 
O
u
tt
u
rn

R
A
G
 r
a
ti
n
g

D
ir
e
ct
io
n
 o
f 
T
ra
v
e
l

2
0
0
7
-0
8
 

O
u
tt
u
rn

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

T
a
rg
e
t

7
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
a
 t
h
ri
v
in
g
 t
h
ir
d
 

s
e
c
to
r

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

1
4
.9
0
%

G
G

G
G

B
a
s
e
lin
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d

1
0

V
is
it
s 
to
 m
u
se
u
m
s 
a
n
d
 g
a
lle
ri
e
s 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

C
u
lt
u
re

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

4
8
%

4
8
%

G
G

G
G

B
a
s
e
lin
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d

1
5

S
e
ri
o
u
s
 v
io
le
n
t 
c
ri
m
e
 r
a
te
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

N
o
 d
a
ta

0
.3
3
1

0
.7
6
8

0
.9
7
0

R
A

A
A

N
e
w
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 d
a
ta
 

c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts

1
6

S
e
ri
o
u
s
 a
c
q
u
is
it
iv
e
 c
ri
m
e
 r
a
te

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

N
o
 d
a
ta

3
.5
6
5

5
.2
6
3

6
.9
5
0

R
A

A
A

N
e
w
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 d
a
ta
 

c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts

1
8

A
d
u
lt
 r
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 r
a
te
s
 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 u
n
d
e
r 
p
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

N
o
 d
a
ta

N
o
 d
a
ta

N
o
 d
a
ta

N
o
 d
a
ta

R
A

A
R

N
o
 d
a
ta

2
0

A
s
s
a
u
lt
 w
it
h
 i
n
ju
ry
 c
ri
m
e
 r
a
te

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

N
o
 d
a
ta

3
.1
6
7

4
.2
1
5

5
.3
9
0

R
A

A
A

N
e
w
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 d
a
ta
 

c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts

2
2

P
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
s 
o
f 
p
a
re
n
ts
 t
a
k
in
g
 

re
sp
o
n
si
b
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
th
e
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 

o
f 
th
e
ir
 c
h
ild
re
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
re
a

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

C
u
lt
u
re

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

G
G

G
G

N
o
 d
a
ta
 b
u
t 
b
a
s
e
lin
e
 w
ill
 

b
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d

2
4

S
a
ti
sf
a
ct
io
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 w
a
y
 t
h
e
 

p
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 l
o
ca
l 
co
u
n
ci
l 
d
e
a
lt
 

w
it
h
 a
n
ti
so
ci
a
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

C
u
lt
u
re

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

G
G

G
G

N
o
 d
a
ta
 b
u
t 
b
a
s
e
lin
e
 w
ill
 

b
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d

2
5

S
a
ti
sf
a
ct
io
n
 o
f 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
s 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 w
a
y
 t
h
e
 p
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 

lo
ca
l 
co
u
n
ci
l 
d
e
a
lt
 w
it
h
 a
n
ti
-

so
ci
a
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

C
u
lt
u
re

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

G
G

G
G

N
o
 d
a
ta
 b
u
t 
b
a
s
e
lin
e
 w
ill
 

b
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d

2
7

U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
lo
ca
l 

co
n
ce
rn
s 
a
b
o
u
t 
a
n
ti
-s
o
ci
a
l 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
a
n
d
 c
ri
m
e
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

lo
ca
l 
co
u
n
ci
l 
a
n
d
 p
o
lic
e

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

C
u
lt
u
re

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

G
G

G
G

N
o
 d
a
ta
 b
u
t 
b
a
s
e
lin
e
 w
ill
 

b
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d

2
8

K
n
if
e
 c
ri
m
e
 r
a
te
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

N
o
 d
a
ta

0
.0
7
8

0
.0
9
0

0
.1
4
0

R
A

A
A

D
a
ta
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
u
t 
n
o
 

d
e
ta
il 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
f 
p
a
s
t 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
r 
ta
rg
e
t

2
9

G
u
n
 c
ri
m
e
 r
a
te
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

N
o
 d
a
ta

0
.0
2
8

0
.0
3
9

0
.0
5

R
A

A
A

D
a
ta
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
u
t 
n
o
 

d
e
ta
il 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
f 
p
a
s
t 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
r 
ta
rg
e
t

3
2

R
e
p
e
a
t 
in
c
id
e
n
ts
 o
f 
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

v
io
le
n
c
e

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

N
o
w
 b
e
in
g
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 

2
0
0
9
-1
0

R
G

G
G

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

3
3

A
rs
o
n
 i
n
c
id
e
n
ts

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

N
o
 d
a
ta

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 

1
&
2
 d
a
ta
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

a
) 
1
.3
5
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

 b
) 
4
.2
0
  

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 

1
&
2
&
3
 d
a
ta
 

a
) 
2
.1
2

b
) 
5
.7
7

Q
4
 d
a
ta
 a
w
a
it
e
d

R
A

A
A

D
a
ta
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
u
t 
n
o
 

d
e
ta
il 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
f 
p
a
s
t 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
r 
ta
rg
e
t

3
4

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 v
io
le
n
c
e
 –
 m
u
rd
e
r

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

N
o
 d
a
ta

0
0

0
R

A
G

G

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 n
o
 t
a
rg
e
t 
o
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 a
t 

m
a
x
im
u
m

O
th
e
r 
re
la
te
d
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs

38



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A

R
e
a
so
n
 f
o
r 
ju
d
g
e
m
e
n
ts

N
IS

L
A
A

H
C
S

C
P

B
V
P
I
A
P
A

J
u
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r

M
a
rc
h

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
D
e
ce
m
b
e
r

M
a
rc
h

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
D
e
ce
m
b
e
r

M
a
rc
h

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

In
d
ic
a
to
r

L
e
a
d
 D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

L
a
te
s
t 
O
u
tt
u
rn

R
A
G
 r
a
ti
n
g

D
ir
e
ct
io
n
 o
f 
T
ra
v
e
l

2
0
0
7
-0
8
 

O
u
tt
u
rn

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

T
a
rg
e
t

3
8

D
ru
g
-r
e
la
te
d
 (
C
la
s
s
 A
) 

o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 r
a
te

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

D
a
ta
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 

a
v
a
ila
b
le

R
G

G
G

N
o
 d
a
ta
 b
u
t 
b
a
s
e
lin
e
 w
ill
 

b
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d

4
1

P
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
s 
o
f 
d
ru
n
k
 o
r 
ro
w
d
y
 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
a
s 
a
 p
ro
b
le
m

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

C
u
lt
u
re

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

D
a
ta
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 

a
v
a
ila
b
le

G
G

G
G

N
o
 d
a
ta
 b
u
t 
b
a
s
e
lin
e
 w
ill
 

b
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d

4
2

P
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
d
ru
g
 u
s
e
 o
r 

d
ru
g
 d
e
a
lin
g
 a
s
 a
 p
ro
b
le
m

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

D
a
ta
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 

a
v
a
ila
b
le

R
A

A
G

N
o
 d
a
ta
 b
u
t 
b
a
s
e
lin
e
 w
ill
 

b
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d

4
9

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
ri
m
a
ry
 f
ir
e
s
 a
n
d
 

re
la
te
d
 f
a
ta
lit
ie
s
 a
n
d
 n
o
n
-f
a
ta
l 

c
a
s
u
a
lt
ie
s
, 
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 

p
re
c
a
u
ti
o
n
a
ry
 c
h
e
c
k
s

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

N
o
 d
a
ta

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 

1
&
2
 d
a
ta
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

a
) 
7
6
.2
2
  
  
  
 

b
) 
0
.0
0
  
  
  
  

c
) 
1
.6
8

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 

1
&
2
&
3
 d
a
ta
 

a
) 
1
2
2
.7
4

b
) 
0
.0
0

c
) 
5
.0
4

Q
4
 d
a
ta
 a
w
a
it
e
d

R
A

A
A

D
a
ta
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
u
t 
n
o
 

d
e
ta
il 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
f 
p
a
s
t 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
r 
ta
rg
e
t

1
4
3

O
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 u
n
d
e
r 
p
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 l
iv
in
g
 i
n
 s
e
tt
le
d
 a
n
d
 

s
u
it
a
b
le
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
t 
th
e
 

e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 o
rd
e
r 
o
r 
lic
e
n
c
e

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

N
o
 d
a
ta

8
1
%

7
8
%

7
8
%

R
A

A
A

D
a
ta
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
u
t 
n
o
 

d
e
ta
il 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
f 
p
a
s
t 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
r 
ta
rg
e
t

1
4
4

O
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 u
n
d
e
r 
p
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 i
n
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
a
t 

th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 o
rd
e
r 
o
r 
lic
e
n
c
e

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

N
o
 d
a
ta

5
3
%

5
4
%

5
6
%

R
A

A
A

D
a
ta
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
u
t 
n
o
 

d
e
ta
il 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
f 
p
a
s
t 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
r 
ta
rg
e
t

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

E
a
se
 o
f 
a
cc
e
ss
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s

(a
) 
lo
ca
l 
sh
o
p

(b
) 
so
lic
it
o
r/
C
A
B
/o
th
e
r 
a
d
v
ic
e
 

se
rv
ic
e

(c
) 
p
u
b
lic
 t
ra
n
sp
o
rt
 f
a
ci
lit
y

(d
) 
cu
lt
u
ra
l/
re
cr
e
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fa
ci
lit
y

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

E
st
a
b
lis
h
 

b
a
se
lin
e
 b
y
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

(a
) 
1
2
%

(b
) 
1
8
%

(c
) 
2
1
%

(d
) 
2
1
%

R
G

G
G

B
a
se
lin
e
 e
st
a
b
lis
h
e
d

Y
e
s

Q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
L
if
e
 -
 %
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 

w
h
o
 f
e
e
l 
ce
rt
a
in
 a
sp
e
ct
s 
n
e
e
d
 

im
p
ro
v
in
g
:

b
. 
A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 d
e
ce
n
t 
h
o
u
si
n
g

c.
 J
o
b
 p
ro
sp
e
ct
s

d
. 
L
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
cr
im
e

e
. 
L
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
tr
a
ff
ic
 c
o
n
g
e
st
io
n

f.
 W
a
g
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
 a
n
d
 l
o
ca
l 
co
st
 o
f 

liv
in
g

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

E
st
a
b
lis
h
 

b
a
se
lin
e
 b
y
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

(b
) 
3
0
%

(c
) 
2
6
%

(d
) 
1
7
%

(e
) 
3
3
%

(f
) 
2
6
%

A
G

G
G

B
a
se
lin
e
 e
st
a
b
lis
h
e
d

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

IC
P
R
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs

39



40



 

COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 29 JUNE 2009 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
David Penrose, Democratic Services Officer,  on 01432 383690 

 

 COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 

Report By: Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

 

Purpose 

1 To consider the Committee’s work programme. 
 

Financial Implications 

2 None  

 

Background 

3 As reported to Council in May, work is ongoing on the response to the findings of the 
external healthcheck of the scrutiny function, undertaken by the Leadership Centre, 
which is also looking at the Council’s governance arrangements as a whole and 
Member Development.  Members of the Strategic Monitoring Committee have met 
informally to discuss the findings, some of which relate to the content of annual Work 
Programmes.  Further work is being programmed.  Work Programmes of all the 
Scrutiny Committees will need to be reconsidered in the light of these discussions.  
The Committee should have the opportunity to consider a revised work programme at 
its next meeting. 

4 Pending the outcome of the above work, and in accordance with the Scrutiny 
Development Plan, a report on the Committee’s current work programme is made to 
each of the scheduled quarterly meetings of this Scrutiny Committee.  A copy of the 
work programme is attached as an appendix 

5 Should any urgent, prominent or high profile issue arise, the Chairman may consider
 calling an additional meeting to consider that issue. 

6 Should Members become aware of any issues they consider may be added to the 
scrutiny programme they should contact both the Director of Regeneration and the 
Director of Environment & Culture or Democratic Services to log the issue so that it 
may be taken in to consideration when planning future agendas or when revising the 
work programme. 

Recommendation 

THAT subject to any comment or issues raised by the Committee the 
Committee work programme be approved and reported to the Strategic 
Monitoring Committee. 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

• None identified. 

AGENDA ITEM 12

41



42



 

 
COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
WORK PROGRAMME PRESENTED FOR CONSIDERATION ON 29 JUNE 2009 

 

 

5 October 2009 

Items • Budget 

• Performance Monitoring  

• Edgar Street Grid – Update  

• Impact of the Economic Downturn 

• Consider the Executive’s Response to the Scrutiny Review 
of Tourism 

• Review of the Herefordshire Economic Development 
Strategy 2005- 25 

• PACT Meetings 

Scrutiny Reviews  

 Other issues 

 • Review of Volunteering 

• Review of Access to Services 

• Review of Festivals in Herefordshire 

 7 December 2009 

Items • Budget 

• Performance Monitoring  

• Edgar Street Grid – Update  

• Action Plan Monitoring: Scrutiny Review of Community and 
Safety Drugs Partnership. 

 
Further additions to the work programme will be made as required. 
 

43



44


	Agenda
	
	5 MINUTES
	Minutes 6 April 2009

	7 REVIEW OF THE BACKLOG OF DEFINITIVE MAP MODIFICATION ORDERS
	8 EXECUTIVE'S RESPONSE TO THE SCRUTINY REVIEW OF COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT WITH THE HEREFORDSHIRE COMMUNITY AND SAFETY DRUGS PARTNERSHIP
	Appendix 1 community safety Action plan final

	9 HEREFORD UNITED FOOTBALL GROUND LEASES
	10 COMMUNITY/CULTURAL SERVICES REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING
	CSS Jun Budget 09 App 09 v2

	11 ENVIRONMENT & CULTURE AND REGENERATION DIRECTORATES: PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR 1 APRIL 2008 - 31 MARCH 2009
	Appendix A

	12 COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME
	Community Services Work Prog at June 09


